
Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m.,  Wednesday, July 24, 2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 17, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$8,140,431.57 For The Period Ending July 6, 2024 Through July 12, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 6, 2024 - JUL 12, 2024.PDF

(2) Accept The Interurban Trail To YMCA Pedestrian Improvements Project As Complete 
And Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

ALWAYS ACTIVE SERVICES-INTERURBAN TRAIL-YMCA PED IMP-FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE.PDF

(3) Authorize A Call For Bids For The Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement Project.

BEVERLY LAKE SEWER-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(4) Accept The WPFC TFI Bar Screen Project As Complete And Authorize The Mayor To 
Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

MCCLURE AND SONS-WPCF TFI BAR SCREEN UPDATE-FINAL ACCEPT.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 1 To Washington Department Of Fish 
And Wildlife Law Enforcement Services Contract To Increase Compensation In The Amount 
Of $60,000 For A Total Contract Amount Of $150,000.

WDFW-LAW ENFORCEMENT SRVS-AMEND NO.1.PDF

(6) Authorize A Call For Bids For The West Marine View Drive/Alverson Blvd And 
41st/Grand Ave Pedestrian Improvements Project.

WMVD-ALVERSON AND 41ST-GRAND PED IMP-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(7) Adopt Resolution Authorizing The Surplus Of Timber And Call For Bids On The Russula 
Commercial Thin Timber Sale.

RUSSULA TIMBER SALE RESO.PDF

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 2 To The Professional Services 
Agreement With PFM Financial Advisors LLC.

PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC AMENDMENT 2.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEM:

(9) CB 2407-14 – 1st Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. (3rd & 
Final Reading 8/7/24)

CB 2407-14.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION ITEM:

(10) CB 2406-13 – Public Hearing And 3rd & Final Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Vacating 
The Remaining Alleys In The Block Bounded By Rockefeller Avenue On The West, Oakes 
Avenue On The East, Pacific Avenue On The North, And 32nd Street On The South. 

CB 2406-13.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:



Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m.,  Wednesday, July 24, 2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 17, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$8,140,431.57 For The Period Ending July 6, 2024 Through July 12, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 6, 2024 - JUL 12, 2024.PDF

(2) Accept The Interurban Trail To YMCA Pedestrian Improvements Project As Complete 
And Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

ALWAYS ACTIVE SERVICES-INTERURBAN TRAIL-YMCA PED IMP-FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE.PDF

(3) Authorize A Call For Bids For The Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement Project.

BEVERLY LAKE SEWER-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(4) Accept The WPFC TFI Bar Screen Project As Complete And Authorize The Mayor To 
Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

MCCLURE AND SONS-WPCF TFI BAR SCREEN UPDATE-FINAL ACCEPT.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 1 To Washington Department Of Fish 
And Wildlife Law Enforcement Services Contract To Increase Compensation In The Amount 
Of $60,000 For A Total Contract Amount Of $150,000.

WDFW-LAW ENFORCEMENT SRVS-AMEND NO.1.PDF

(6) Authorize A Call For Bids For The West Marine View Drive/Alverson Blvd And 
41st/Grand Ave Pedestrian Improvements Project.

WMVD-ALVERSON AND 41ST-GRAND PED IMP-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(7) Adopt Resolution Authorizing The Surplus Of Timber And Call For Bids On The Russula 
Commercial Thin Timber Sale.

RUSSULA TIMBER SALE RESO.PDF

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 2 To The Professional Services 
Agreement With PFM Financial Advisors LLC.

PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC AMENDMENT 2.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEM:

(9) CB 2407-14 – 1st Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. (3rd & 
Final Reading 8/7/24)

CB 2407-14.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION ITEM:

(10) CB 2406-13 – Public Hearing And 3rd & Final Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Vacating 
The Remaining Alleys In The Block Bounded By Rockefeller Avenue On The West, Oakes 
Avenue On The East, Pacific Avenue On The North, And 32nd Street On The South. 

CB 2406-13.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:



Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m.,  Wednesday, July 24, 2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 17, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$8,140,431.57 For The Period Ending July 6, 2024 Through July 12, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 6, 2024 - JUL 12, 2024.PDF

(2) Accept The Interurban Trail To YMCA Pedestrian Improvements Project As Complete 
And Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

ALWAYS ACTIVE SERVICES-INTERURBAN TRAIL-YMCA PED IMP-FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE.PDF

(3) Authorize A Call For Bids For The Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement Project.

BEVERLY LAKE SEWER-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(4) Accept The WPFC TFI Bar Screen Project As Complete And Authorize The Mayor To 
Sign The Certificate Of Completion.

MCCLURE AND SONS-WPCF TFI BAR SCREEN UPDATE-FINAL ACCEPT.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 1 To Washington Department Of Fish 
And Wildlife Law Enforcement Services Contract To Increase Compensation In The Amount 
Of $60,000 For A Total Contract Amount Of $150,000.

WDFW-LAW ENFORCEMENT SRVS-AMEND NO.1.PDF

(6) Authorize A Call For Bids For The West Marine View Drive/Alverson Blvd And 
41st/Grand Ave Pedestrian Improvements Project.

WMVD-ALVERSON AND 41ST-GRAND PED IMP-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(7) Adopt Resolution Authorizing The Surplus Of Timber And Call For Bids On The Russula 
Commercial Thin Timber Sale.

RUSSULA TIMBER SALE RESO.PDF

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Amendment No. 2 To The Professional Services 
Agreement With PFM Financial Advisors LLC.

PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC AMENDMENT 2.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEM:

(9) CB 2407-14 – 1st Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. (3rd & 
Final Reading 8/7/24)

CB 2407-14.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING AND ACTION ITEM:

(10) CB 2406-13 – Public Hearing And 3rd & Final Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Vacating 
The Remaining Alleys In The Block Bounded By Rockefeller Avenue On The West, Oakes 
Avenue On The East, Pacific Avenue On The North, And 32nd Street On The South. 

CB 2406-13.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

http://everettwa.gov/speakerform
mailto:aely@everettwa.gov
http://everettwa.gov/citycouncil
http://youtube.com/everettcity
mailto:Council@everettwa.gov
https://www.everettwa.gov/75d1afb9-6cfb-42ff-a98f-6ce076ab6297


Be it Resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

Fund Department Amount Fund Department  Amount 

002 General Government (625.10) 101 Parks & Recreation 2,678.66
003 Legal 3,509.15 110 Library 10,885.53
005 Municipal Court 1,666.92 112 Community Theater 30,162.97
009 Misc Financial Funds 407,734.49 119 Public Works-Street Improvements 707,219.83
018 Communications, Mktg & Engagement 199.50 120 Public Works-Streets 20,962.75
021 Planning & Community Development 12,600.00 130 Develop & Const Permit Fees 705.87
024 Public Works-Engineering 199.03 138 Hotel/Motel Tax 6,500.00
026 Animal Shelter 241.19 145 Real Property Acquisition 63,613.38
030 Emergency Management 33.00 146 Property Management 17,245.96
031 Police 17,168.38 152 Cum Reserve-Library 1,173.60
032 Fire 7,194.18 153 Emergency Medical Services 183,368.08

155 Capital Reserve Fund 78,061.13
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 449,920.74$      156 Criminal Justice 4,352.54

162 Capital Projects Reserve 28,044.40
198 Community Dv Block Grant 22,269.37
303 PW Improvement Projects 122,586.00
336 Water & Sewer Sys Improv Project 822,915.28
342 City Facilities Contruction 1,820,376.96
354 Parks Capital Construction 15,832.24
401 Public Works-Utilities 1,273,892.84
402 Solid Waste Utility 1,618.37
425 Public Works-Transit 2,412,454.56
440 Golf 17,268.05
501 MVD-Transportation Services 2,339.30
503 Self-Insurance 6,499.82
505 Computer Reserve 10,529.88
507 Telecommumications 4,028.11
637 Police Pension 2,572.24
638 Fire Pension 69.00
661 Claims 284.11

TOTAL CLAIMS 8,140,431.57$     

Councilperson introducing Resolution

Passed and approved this ________day of ________________  , 2024

Council President

Whereas the claims payable by check against the City of Everett for the period Jul 6, 2024 through Jul 12, 2024, having 

been audited and approved by the proper officers, have been paid and the disbursements made by the same, against 

the proper funds in payment thereof, as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. __________



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:   Request for Final Acceptance & Certificate of Completion for IUT to YMCA Ped Improvements 

Council Bill #    
 

Project: Interurban Trail to YMCA Pedestrian Improvements 

Partner/Supplier  :  Always Active Services, LLC 

                    Location: Alta Dr, Beaumont DR to Colby Ave & to the YMCA 

Preceding action:    Contract Award-June 15, 2022 

Fund:  303 

Agenda dates requested:  
Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                  07/24/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments:   
 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8809 
 

Email: 
Thood@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
TH for RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
Original Contract Amount:      $  332,142.00 

Final Contract Voucher Amount   $  287,890.19 

  

Project summary statement: 

The general contractor, Always Active Services LLC., completed the Interurban Trail to 
YMCA Pedestrian Improvements project in accordance with the project’s plans and 
specifications and to the satisfaction of the Public Works Department. 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):  

Accept the Interurban Trail to YMCA Pedestrian Improvements Project as complete and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Certificate of Completion.   

 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/13859?fileID=81222






























                                                                                                                                                                           

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Project title:  Authorize a Call for bids for Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement Project. 

Council Bill #  
 

Consideration: Call for bids 

Project: Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement Project 

Partner/Supplier:  

                    Location: 645-801 75th Street SE 

Preceding action:  Ordinance No. 3737-20, approved on 3/18/2020 

Fund: 336 - Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing    
Proposed action 
Consent                  07/24/24 
Action        
Ordinance   
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Vicinity Map 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8809 
 

Email: 
thood@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
    RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The current programmed available funding, as established by City Ordinance No. 3737-
20, for this project is $3,500,000. 
  

Project summary statement:  

The plans and specifications are complete, and the Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement 
Project is ready to be advertised for construction bids. 
 
This project will replace an aging sewer line and construct a new lift station (Lift Station 
47) near Beverly Lake. The replacement will improve the performance of the sewer 
system and protect public health, private property, and water quality in Beverly Lake. 

The project will include furnishing all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to 
realign and replace pipes and structures to bring sewage to a proposed centralized lift 
station.  Construction will include 480 linear feet of water service and approximately 700 
linear feet of sanitary sewer main, 560 linear feet of sewer force main, 6-48” Sewer 
Manholes, Lift Station Below and Above-Grade, 415 ton of Hot-Mix-Asphalt (HMA), 950 
feet of electrical conduit, 1 each Electrical Junction Box and other such appurtenances. 

The project will incorporate trenchless technology to minimize the environmental 
impacts as well as impacts to local residents. 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize a call for bids for the Beverly Lake Sewer Replacement project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                                                                                                
 

 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:   Request for Final Acceptance & Certificate of Completion for WPFC TFI Bar Screen Upgrades Project 

Council Bill #    
 

Project:  WPFC TFI Bar Screen Upgrades 

Partner/Supplier:  McClure and Sons Inc. 

                    Location: 4027 4th St SE, Everett, WA 98205  
Everett Water Pollution Control Facility (EWPCF) 

Preceding action:    Contract Award- 

Fund:  336, Program 027 

Agenda dates requested:   
7/24/24 
 
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent  X 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments:   
 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works 
 

Contact person:                  
Jeff Marrs 
 

Phone number:                  
425-257-8967 
 
 

Email:  
Jmarrs@everettwa.gov 
 
 

Initialed by: 
    RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
Original Contract Amount:      $  2,275,712.49 

Final Contract Voucher Amount   $  2,225,195.42 

  

Project summary statement: 

The general contractor, McClure and Sons Inc. completed the WPFC TFI Bar Screen 
project in accordance with the project’s plans and specifications and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. 

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):  

Accept the WPFC TFI Bar Screen Project as complete and authorize the Mayor to sign 
the Certificate of Completion.    

 















                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: Amendment No. 1 to Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife Law Enforcement Services 
Contract  

Council Bill #   
 

Project: Law Enforcement Services to City Owned Property around Lake Chaplain 

Partner/Supplier: Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 

                    Location: Lake Chaplain Tract 

Preceding action:  Original Contract (09.08.2021)  

Fund: 401 Water & Sewer Utility Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                  7/24/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes  x No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  x No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  x No 

 

Attachments: 
Law Enforcement Services 
Contract 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works 
 

Contact person: 
Jeff Marrs 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8967 
 

Email: 
jmarrs@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
   RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
Amendment No. 1 increases the total compensation of the existing agreement with 
Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW). The original total 
compensation was $90,000. Due to an increased need of services, the budget will be 
increased by $60,000, for a total revised compensation of $150,000. 

Project summary statement: 

The current agreement allows WDFW to provide law enforcement services around the 
Lake Chaplain Tract, demonstrating a visible and active presence while enforcing all 
Washington State and County laws/codes and City regulations set forth in Everett 
Municipal Code Chapter 8.64.  

Amendment No. 1 will increase the total compensation amount on the existing contract, 
set to expire December 31, 2024, for continued security inspections, investigations in 
relation to use of property, and escorting trespassers and rule violators off the property.  

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 

Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to Washington Department of Fish and 
Wildlife Law Enforcement Services Contract to increase compensation in the amount of 
$60,000 for a total contract amount of $150,000. 

 



Category 2: For official use only / disclosure permissible by law. 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

TITLE:  2022-2024 City of Everett LES WDFW NUMBER: 22-18235 

AMENDMENT NUMBER: 1 

CONTRACTOR: City of Everett AMENDMENT VALUE:  $60,000.00 

AMENDMENT EFFECTIVE DATE: 
01/01/2022 

CONTRACT END DATE: 
12/31/2024 

The above-referenced Contract between the State of Washington, Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (WDFW); and City of Everett is hereby amended as follows: 

Adds 60,000 to contract bringing the total contract value to $150,000. 

All other terms and conditions of this Contract remain in full force and effect. 

THIS AMENDMENT is executed by the persons signing below, who warrant that they have the 
authority to execute this Amendment. 

City of Everett 

_________________________ 
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 

Approved as to Form: 

__________________________ 
Tim Benedict 

Attest: 

__________________________ 
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 

Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife  

_________________________ 
Signature and Date 

_________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Project title:  Authorize a Call for bids for West Marine View Drive/Alverson Blvd and 41st/Grand Ave     
Pedestrian Improvements   

Council Bill #  
 

Consideration: Call for bids 

Project: West Marine View Drive/Alverson Blvd and 41st/Grand Ave Pedestrian 

Partner/Supplier: WA State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) 

                    Location: West Marine View Drive /Alverson and 41st/ Grand Ave 

Preceding action:  Ordinance No. 3837- 21, approved on 11/24/2021 

Fund: 303 – Public Works Improvement Projects 

Agenda dates requested:  
July 24, 2024 
 

Briefing    
Proposed action 
Consent        X 
Action        
Ordinance   
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Vicinity Map 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8809 
 

Email: 
thood@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
    RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The current programmed available funding, as established by City Ordinance No. 3837-
21, for this project is $865,200. 

  
Project summary statement:  

The plans and specifications are complete, and the West Marine View Drive/Alverson 
Blvd and 41st/Grand Ave Pedestrian Improvements Project is ready to be advertised for 
construction bids. 
 
The work includes but is not limited to the replacement of the existing pedestrian path 
in Hibulb Park with Hot Asphalt Mix (HMA) in the same location.  All path excavated 
material is considered hazardous materials to be disposed of at an approve site. The 
path will be extended north to the West Marine View Drive and Alverson intersection 
where it will join new cement concrete sidewalk that terminates at the existing south 
end of the rapid flashing beacon.  New ADA ramp, new raised median on West Marine 
View Drive at the Rapid Flashing Beacon, a short landscape retaining wall, signage, and 
illumination.  
 

At 41st/Grand Ave upgrade existing crosswalk with new ADA ramps and Rapid Flashing 
Beacons with an advance notice flasher. 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize a call for bids for the West Marine View Drive/Alverson Blvd and 41st/Grand 
Ave Pedestrian Improvements project. 

 



 

                                                                                                                                                                                
 

    

 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                
 

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: A Resolution to authorize surplus of timber and the call for bids for the Russula Commercial 
Thin Timber Sale 

Council Bill #   
 

Project: Russula Commercial Thin Timber Sale 

Partner/Supplier: n/a   

                    Location: Lake Chaplain Tract 

Preceding action:  Ordinance #1741-90 establishing timber sale procedures, 10/10/1990 

Fund: 401 Water and Sewer Utility 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                  07/24/24 
Action  
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes     x No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  x No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  x No 

 

Attachments: 
Resolution 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works 
 

Contact person: 
Jeff Marrs 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8967 
 

Email: 
jmarrs@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
      RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
The Russula Commercial Thin Timber Sale is anticipated to have an estimated total 
revenue of $335,000.00. 

Project summary statement: 

In 2009, the City entered into an agreement with the Washington Department of Fish 
and Wildlife and the Public Utility District No. 1 of Snohomish County for the 
management of City lands at Lake Chaplain. This agreement required the City to develop 
the Lake Chaplain Tract Wildlife Habitat Management Plan (LCT-WHMP). This plan was 
modified in 2015 by the Safe/Harbor Cooperative Habitat Enhancement Agreement  
(SHA-CHEA) with the United States Fish and Wildlife Service and Washington State 
Department of Natural Resources. 

The LCT-WHMP and SHA-CHEA manage timber harvest and forestry activities to 
maintain and enhance habitat for wildlife. Commercial thinning creates understory 
diversity, benefitting many species. 

This resolution, which authorized the surplus of timber and call for bids on the Russula 
Commercial Thin Timber Sale, will continue to accomplish the habitat objectives 
approved in the LCT-WHMP and SHA-CHEA, as well as provide revenue to the City. 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 

Adopt Resolution authorizing the surplus of timber and call for bids on the Russula 
Commercial Thin Timber Sale. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 
A RESOLUTION Declaring Certain Timber Surplus and Authorizing a Call for Bids for the Russula 
Commercial Thin Timber Sale    
 
WHEREAS,  

A. EMC 3.72.010 states that the Utilities Division of the Public Works Department will prepare sales 
of timber on City utility property.  EMC 3.72.020 provides procedure for timber sales: 

Council shall by resolution authorize the call for bids, notice of which shall be advertised 
once a week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
city and elsewhere as determined by the administration.  The last publication shall be at 
least twenty but not more than thirty days before the date of bid opening. The notice 
shall describe the property on which the timber is located and state the time and place 
at which it will be sold or offered for sale, the terms of sale, fix the conditions thereof 
and shall reserve the right to reject any and all bids. 

B. The Utility Division of the Public Works Department in accordance with chapter 3.72 EMC, the 
applicable management plans and other requirements in the Chaplain Tract, has prepared the 
Russula Commercial Thin Timber Sale.  This timber sale is for certain timber in approximately 
312 acres generally near T-1200 Road and T-1000 Road, in parts of Sections 26 and 35, Township 
29 North, Range 07 East, and Section 31 of Township 29 North, Range 08 East, all W.M., in 
Snohomish County, Washington.  The timber to be sold will be more specifically described in the 
Timber Notice of Sale.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  

The timber in the Russula Commercial Thin Timber Sale as described in its Notice of Timber Sale is 
declared surplus and a call for bids is authorized for the Russula Commercial Thin Timber Sale. 

 

_________________________________________     
Councilmember introducing resolution 
 
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Council President 



 

                                                                                                                                                                                

  

  

    

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
PFM Financial Advisors LLC  

Council Bill # interoffice use  
 

Project: Financial Advisory Services 

Partner/Supplier: PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

                    Location: NA  

Preceding action:  July 9, 2014 

Fund: 010/Finance 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent                  07/24/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes      X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
PSA 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Finance 
 

Contact person: 
Heide Brillantes  
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8612 
 

Email: 
HBrillantes@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
HB 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

On July 9, 2014, Council awarded RFQ 2014-045 to PFM Financial Advisors LLC to provide 
financial advisory services and authorized the Mayor to sign the Professional Services Agreement.  
In 2019, Amendment No. 1 extended the term to August 15, 2024.  

The proposed Amendment No. 2 is to amend: 

1. provision 3 of the Agreement to extend the term through August 15, 2028, 
2. City of Everett and PFM’s addresses for notices in provisions 22.A. and 22.B. of the 

Agreement, and 
3. provision 4.B. of the Agreement to change compensation schedules for competitive and 

negotiated sales of long-term financings and advisory services. 

There is no change to the scope of work. 

  
Project summary statement: 

The financial advisor assists in the City’s debt issuance process, including, but not limited to 
preparing Preliminary and Final Official Statements, providing analysis of market interest rates 
based on the City’s bond rating, and facilitating the online competitive bidding process and final 
award.  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement with PFM 
Financial Advisors LLC. 

 

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 



1 

 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
This Amendment to Professional Services Agreement (“Amendment”) is effective as of 

last signature below, and is between the City of Everett, a Washington municipal corporation (the 
“City”), and the person identified as the Service Provider below (“Service Provider”). The City and 
Service Provider are parties to the Professional Services Agreement described below, as may be 
previously amended ("Agreement"). In consideration of the covenants, terms and conditions set 
forth below, and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the City and Service Provider agree to amend the Agreement as set forth 
below: 

Service Provider  PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

City Project 
Manager  

Heide Brillantes 

HBrillantes@everettwa.gov 

Original 
Agreement Date 
 

7/29/2014  

 
AMENDMENTS 

New Completion 
Date (Section 3) August 15, 2028 

Compensation 
(Section 4.B)  

The following replaces Section 4.B for Work after August 15, 2024: 
 
The compensation schedule for competitive and negotiated sales of long-
term financings will be billed at closing as follows: 
 

Bond Size Issuance Fee 
For financings up to $25 
million 

$35,000 

For financings between $25 
million and $75 million 

$35,000 plus $0.80 per $1,000 
over $25 million 

For financings over $75 
million 

$75,000 plus $0.45 per $1,000 
over $75 million 

 
For advisory services provided in connection with debt issued on a direct-
placement basis (i.e., directly to a commercial bank), Service Provider will 
charge a fee equivalent to 70% of the fee schedule shown above. 
 



2 

In the event that a transaction is started, but cancelled at the City’s 
request, accrued time would be billed at the hourly rates set forth below. 
However, in no case would the amount billed exceed 60% of the amount 
that would have been billed if the transaction had been completed. 
 
For advisory services provided at the request of the City that are not 
directly related to a transaction (i.e. special projects), the following hourly 
rates will apply: 
 

Experience Level Hourly Rate 
Managing Director $350 
Director $325 
Senior Managing Consultant $300 
Senior Analyst $260 
Analyst $215 
Associate (Administrative) $195 

 

Changes to  
Scope of Work Scope of Work is not changed by this Amendment I 

Leaving selection 
as “Click for 
Dropdown Menu” 
means no change 
to Scope of Work. 

Other 
Amendments 

City’s address for notices in Section 22.A of the Agreement shall be 
changed to the following: 
 
City of Everett 
Attn: Heide Brillantes 
Finance Director 
2930 Wetmore Ave 
Everett, WA 98201 
 
Service Provider’s address for notices in Section 22.B. of the 
Agreement shall be changed to the following: 
 
PFM Financial Advisors LLC  
107 Spring Street 
Seattle, WA 98104 
Attn: Managing Director 
with copy to Thomas Toepfer at toepfert@pfm.com and Maggie 
Marshall at marshallm@pfm.com 
 
 

Standard 
Amendment 
Provisions 

Regardless of the date(s) on which this Amendment is signed by the 
parties, and regardless of any Agreement completion date(s) that may 
have been in the Agreement prior to this Amendment, the parties 
agree that the Agreement is deemed continuously in effect since the 
Original Agreement Date.  

This Amendment may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, and all of which, taken together, shall be deemed 

mailto:toepfert@pfm.com
mailto:marshallm@pfm.com


3 

one and the same document.  AdobeSign signatures are fully binding. 
Any ink, electronic, faxed, scanned, photocopied, or similarly 
reproduced signature on this Amendment will be deemed an original 
signature and will be fully enforceable as an original signature. 

All provisions in the Agreement shall remain in effect except as 
expressly modified by this Amendment.  From and after the effective 
date of this Amendment, all references to the Agreement in the 
Agreement are deemed references to the Agreement as modified by 
this Amendment. 

 
SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

  



4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Service Provider have executed this Amendment. 

 

CITY OF EVERETT 
WASHINGTON 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Date 

PFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC 
 
 
 
 
Signature: ____________________________ 
 
Name of Signer: Thomas Toepfer 
Signer’s Email Address: toepfert@pfm.com 
Title of Signer: Managing Director 
 

 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Office of the City Clerk 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 STANDARD DOCUMENT 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
JULY 14, 2023 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                
 

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  An Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – 
Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. 

Council Bill #  
CB 2407-14 

Consideration: Plans & Systems Ordinance 

Project: Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2 

Partner/Supplier:  

                    Location: I-5 bridge from East Grand Avenue to 4th Street SE 

Preceding action:  None 

Fund: 336 - Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing    
1st Reading            07/24/24 
Proposed Action  07/31/24 
Consent 
Action                    08/07/24 
Ordinance              X 
Public hearing 
 Yes  X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Proposed Ordinance 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Souheil Nasr 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-7210 
 

Email: 
snasr@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
   RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The funding source for this project will be Fund 401 Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The 
programmed available funding for design and construction is $2,333,000. 

 

 
Project summary statement:  

This project is for Phase 2 of the Water Main Replacement “Y” project. The project will 
install a new water main to replace an existing water main suspended from I-5 bridge 
that has a high consequence of failure, and recently prone to breaks. The upgrading of 
the water main will ensure reliability of water service for existing customers and future 
development, and that adequate fire flow, per the 2020 Comprehensive Water Plan, is 
provided. The project is scheduled for design in late 2024 and construction in 2025-
2026.  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt an Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main 
Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO.   ________ 
 
An ORDINANCE creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – 
Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042, to accumulate all costs for the improvement. 
 
WHEREAS,  
 

A. The City of Everett is committed to a planned water main infrastructure replacement program. 
 

B. The City of Everett has identified the need and obtained funds to construct certain improvements 
to aging water mains. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF EVERETT DOES ORDAIN: 
 
Section 1. A special improvement project is hereby established as Fund 336, Program 042, entitled 
“Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” to accumulate all costs for the improvement. Authorization is 
hereby given to accumulate costs and distribute payments for the improvement project. 
 
Section 2. Authorization is hereby granted for the “Public Works Director” or “City Engineer” under 
the direction of the Mayor, to assume full and complete responsibility for conducting all tasks and doing 
all things to accomplish the actions authorized in this ordinance. 

 
Section 3. The sum of $2,333,000 is hereby appropriated to Fund 336, Program 042, “Water Main 
Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” as follows: 
 
 A. Estimated Project Costs                       $2,333,000 
 
 B. Source of Funds 
      Fund 401 – Water/Sewer Utility Fund                 $ 2,333,000 
      Total Funds                    $ 2,333,000 
  
 
Section 4. The City Clerk and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make necessary 
corrections to this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, 
references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any internal references. 
 
Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 



ORDINANCE  Page 2 of 2 
 

phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it 
would have passed all portions of this ordinance independent of the elimination of any such portion as 
may be declared invalid. 

Section 6.  The enactment of this Ordinance shall not affect any case, proceeding, appeal or other 
matter currently pending in any court or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which 
may be in existence on the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 7.  It is expressly the purpose of this Ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety 
and welfare of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular 
class or group of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this 
Ordinance.  It is the specific intent of this Ordinance that no provision or any term used in this Ordinance 
is intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees.  Nothing 
contained in this Ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any liability 
on the part of the City, or its officers, employees, or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from any 
action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of this Ordinance by 
its officers, employees or agents. 
 
 
 
            
            
      
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 
 
PASSED:      

VALID:       

PUBLISHED:      

EFFECTIVE DATE:     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                

 

  

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: 
An Ordinance Vacating the Remaining Alleys in the Block Bounded by Rockefeller Avenue on 
the West, Oakes Avenue on the East, Pacific Avenue on the North, and 32nd Street on the 
South 

Council Bill # interoffice use  
CB 2406-13 

Project: Alley Right-of-Way Vacation Ordinance 

Partner/Supplier: Petitioners abutting the alleys proposed for vacation 

                    Location: 3100 Block between Rockefeller and Oakes Avenues 

Preceding action:  04/05/2023 Resolution 7881, 05/31/23 Public Hearing  

Fund: 145 Real Property Acquisition 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

1st Reading              7/10/24 
Proposed action     7/17/24 
Action                       7/24/24 
Ordinance                      X 
Public hearing         7/24/24 
    X Yes   No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Ordinance, Map Exhibit                    
 

Department(s) involved: 
Parks & Facilities, Planning 
 

Contact person: 
Bob Leonard 
 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8335 
 

Email: 
bleonard@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
         RML 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
Positive – The proposed Ordinance requires receipt of payment from the Petitioner for the full 
appraised value of the area to be vacated within 180 days of adoption of the Ordinance.  The 
area to be vacated has been appraised by a professional certified appraiser in the amount of 
$566,700.00. 
 
Project summary statement: 

On April 5, 2023 City Council adopted Resolution 7881 setting a public hearing date of May 31, 
2023 to hear and determine the petition for the remaining alleys in the block bounded by 
Rockefeller Avenue on the west, Oakes Avenue on the east, Pacific Avenue on the north, and 
32nd Street on the south. 

After holding the public hearing and receiving public comments, City Council determined that the 
public interest would best be served by granting the petition and vacating the alley rights-of-way.  
The proposed Ordinance provides for said vacation. 

Though the original resolution occurred in May 2023, the project proponent was supportive of 
this timeline, coming for Council approval in July 2024, to accommodate their project 
circumstances.  

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt an Ordinance vacating the remaining alleys in the block bounded by Rockefeller Avenue on 
the west, Oakes Avenue on the east, Pacific Avenue on the north, and 32nd Street on the south. 

 

  City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/15265?fileID=86581
https://lfportal.everettwa.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=1542817&searchid=b61e24bd-2314-4019-beff-623f93648b61&dbid=0
https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/15597?fileID=87511
https://lfportal.everettwa.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=1542817&searchid=b61e24bd-2314-4019-beff-623f93648b61&dbid=0


 
 
 
 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO.   ________ 
 
An ORDINANCE providing for the vacation of the remaining alleys in the block bounded by Rockefeller 
Avenue on the west, Oakes Avenue on the east, Pacific Avenue on the north, and 32nd Street on the 
south. 
 
WHEREAS,  
 

A. The abutting landowners (the “Petitioners”) have petitioned for the vacation of certain rights of 
way in the City.  

 
B. The City Council, by Resolution No. 7881, established May 31, 2023, as the date of the public 

hearing.  
 

C. After holding the public hearing, the City Council determined that the public interest would best 
be served by granting the petition and vacating the rights of way as provided for in this Ordinance, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth below.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF EVERETT DOES ORDAIN: 
 
Section 1.  
 
The following described rights of way: 

 
All that portion of the east/west alley lying northerly of Lot 20 and southerly of Lots 21 through 
26 inclusive, in Block 739 of Everett Land Company’s First Addition to Everett, according to the 
plat thereof recorded in Volume 3 of Plats, pages 20 through 20A, records of Snohomish County, 
Washington, more particularly described as follows;  
 
Together with all that portion of the north/south alley lying easterly of Lots 1 through 10 and 
lying westerly of Lots 11 through 20, inclusive, in said Block 739 of Everett Land Company’s First 
Addition to Everett. All situate in the City of Everett, County of Snohomish, State of Washington. 

 
are hereby vacated as of the effective date of this Ordinance, subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
 

A. The City shall not be responsible nor liable for storm drainage runoff resulting from existing 
drainage patterns as established on City rights of way that may currently, or in the future, go 
over, under or across the vacated rights of way. 



 
ORDINANCE  Page 2 of 3 
 

  
B. All City improvements within the vacated rights-of-way are the property of the Petitioner(s) on a 

strictly AS-IS basis.   
 

Section 2. 
 
The Petitioners must compensate the City an amount equal to one hundred percent the appraised value 
determined by the City of the entire area described in Section 1 to be vacated by this Ordinance.   The 
Petitioners shall have one-hundred eighty (180) days following the date this Ordinance becomes valid 
under the City Charter to pay this amount in full.   The effective date of this Ordinance is governed as 
follows: 
 

A. If the Petitioners make payment-in-full by the end of the one-hundred eighty (180) days, then 
this Ordinance shall become effective (1) fifteen days after the date the Ordinance become valid 
or (2) the date of payment-in-full, whichever of (1) and (2) is later. 
 

B. If the Petitioners fail to make payment-in-full by the end of the one-hundred eighty (180) days, 
then this Ordinance and vacation hereunder shall be null and void and shall never become 
effective. 

 
Section 3.  
 
The City Clerk and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make necessary corrections to this 
Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, 
ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any internal references. 
 
Section 4.   

The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it would have passed 
all portions of this ordinance independent of the elimination of any such portion as may be declared 
invalid. 

Section 5.   
 
The enactment of this Ordinance shall not affect any case, proceeding, appeal or other matter currently 
pending in any court or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which may be in 
existence on the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 6.   
 



 
ORDINANCE  Page 3 of 3 
 

It is expressly the purpose of this Ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety and welfare 
of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or group 
of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this Ordinance.  It is 
the specific intent of this Ordinance that no provision or any term used in this Ordinance is intended to 
impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees.  Nothing contained in this 
Ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any liability on the part of 
the City, or its officers, employees or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from any action or 
inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of this Ordinance by its 
officers, employees or agents. 
 
Section 7.   
 
After this Ordinance becomes effective, a certified copy shall be recorded within the Snohomish County 
Auditor's Office.  
 
Section 8.   
 
All moneys derived from the vacation of the herein described rights of way shall be deposited into the 
Real Property Acquisition Fund 145 and any use of such moneys shall be consistent with Resolution No. 
7397.   
 
            
            
      
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 
 
PASSED:      

VALID:       

PUBLISHED:      

EFFECTIVE DATE:*     

*governed by Section 2 above 



Snohomish County Assessor GIS, Eagleview; Snohomish County; City of Everett, City of Everett, City of Everett
Public Works

PMckee
Polygon

PMckee
Polygon

PMckee
Polygon

PMckee
Callout
Previously Vacated Alley

PMckee
Callout
Proposed AlleyVacationApprox. 9445 SF

PMckee
Callout
Consolidated Development SiteApprox. 1.95 Acres

PMckee
Text Box
Jackson House Senior Community

PMckee
Callout
NORTH



From:                                         Alexis <alexis.boies@gmail.com>
Sent:                                           Wednesday, July 24, 2024 1:38 PM
To:                                               DL‐Council
Subject:                                     [EXTERNAL] Re: Safe Community Comittee Buffer Zone Update
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Correction‐ Clair's Place
 
Thank you Councilmember Vogeli
 
On Wed, Jul 24, 2024, 1:16 PM Alexis <alexis.boies@gmail.com> wrote:

Good afternoon Committee, Council and Administration, 
 
My name is Alexis Boies and I live in Port Gardner. 
 
I'm writing in to give comment regarding the service area buffer zone that has been implemented around 3301 Lombard, 
Compass Health/Andy's Place.
 
I would like to start by saying we aknowledge and support low barrier housing and the community they serve. Andy's Place
tenants and Compass patients are our neighbors and we will always advocate strongly for their health and well‐being. 
 
Going back to 2016, before Esther's Place was built, Council was having conversations about the impact of low barrier
housing on residential neighborhoods and the importance of supporting the neighbors as well as people accessing housing
and services. We appreciate that there has been thought and consideration for years and are grateful for the buffer zones. 
 
To say that the impact of low barrier housing has been overwhelming, is an understatement. My neighbors and I started
advocating hard in November of 2023 after witnessing an overdose on the corner of Andy's Place. Staff and security stood by
and didn't engage the situation. Fortunately my neighbor and I, with the help of a resident of Andy's were able to provide
narcan and get emergency services out. A few months later we found a man dead behind our homes from an overdose. He
was a patient at Compass health. Every single person we see laying on the ground around our neighborhood, we stop and
make sure they're OK. The trauma of these experiences is real and it's just a matter of time before it happens again. This is
the reality of being within two blocks of Compass.
 
After these incidents and a neighborhood meeting with Compass they provided us with a community email address to
contact them, narcan training for staff and security, free narcan for neighbors, supported the buffet zone, and began bi‐
wekly meetings with city staff and police. We appreciate these steps and look forward to hearing and seeing results from
these meetings.
 
The two blocks surrounding Compass Health/Andy's Place has become a hub of tresspassing, loitering for the purpose of
drug use, vandalism, theft, and harrassment. Friends of tenants and people accessing mental health meds carries has
brought distress to the area. Some days it's unbearable and I just cry. I cry for the people suffering and I cry with anxiety and
fear of safety around our homes.
 
Having the buffer zone has been a game changer with response times and engagement from police, COET, parking
enforcement, and code enforcement. We value and appreciate this immensely. There are days multiple neighbors are
calling 911 multiple times a day, and we are seeing a difference with how often and quickly they are able to show up. 
 
However, we are not seeing a difference in the loitering and car camping. We are not seeing much happening there besides
being asked to move along. Drug dealing and Illegal activity is happening on every single corner and police can only do so
much and there's no fear of repercussion because the jail is full and hands are tied.
 
While the buffer zone is a valuable tool, it's just that, one tool. We need Compass to step into a more proactive, in a more in‐

mailto:alexis.boies@gmail.com


house role. They have 24/7 security that they pay for out of their bottom line, that we don't see engaging with anyone
beyond their front door. When issues arise the CEO and execs tell us to call the police. Please trust that we do, when it's
appropriate and can lead to results. We worry that calling the police on things like screaming obscenities and racial epithets
at 1am or for the guy who simply cant keeps his pants above his waste can be an unnecessary escalation. Their security and
staff are right there, with knowledge and familiarity that can result in faster, longer lasting solutions, than a call to our police
department who's really only able to ask people to stop what their doing or move along.
 
We need this buffer zone. We also need to build a safe community with Compass Health at the helm of providing public
safety, beyond their front door, if we are going to achieve a better environment. We know they receive millions from the
City, please continue to be involved and press  hard for more accountability.
 
Thank you for taking the time to read this and I hope us neighbors can be involved in brainstorming more ways the City,
Compass, and neighbors can create positive change in our buffer zone.
 
‐Alexis Boies

‐A



From:                                         Jose Villalaz <j_villalaz@hotmail.com>
Sent:                                           Wednesday, July 24, 2024 3:42 PM
To:                                               DL‐Council
Subject:                                     [EXTERNAL] Buffer Zone updates (Compass Health)
Attachments:                          1000003740.jpg; 1000003429.jpg; 1000002495.jpg; 1000003707.jpg; 1000002497.jpg
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Greetings Everett City council,
 
I wanted to give you an update on the current buffer zone in our neighborhood surrounding Compass Health.  
 
Since the zone went into effect a few months ago, we have seen improvements across from Compass Health. There are more
police patrols, also more parking enforcement from Lombard avenue, 33rd street, and 34th street.  
 
Also, Compass Health does have 24/7 security on their campus. 
 
The street level issues have improved. However, this situation is on a daily basis changes. I've included some pictures of what I
see across the street from Compass Health. One issue we deal with is cars and or vehicles of the unhoused who setup on the
streets, thus creating a situation we're many people congregate through the day and night. Also, people who just have
nowhere to go, so they will just stay on Lombard avenue, 33rd street and 34th street, the alleys. They just stay on the sidewalk,
and or alleys and in front of our homes. Again, for us who live here we must keep a constant eye out for safety issues. 
 
Another safety issue that must be addressed is Andys place. They can always have visitors, day and night. At night is where we
see many people hanging out on 33rd street, Lombard avenue and 34th street. Since they have nowhere else to go, they stay
on the sidewalk and or streets. This becomes a safety issue and a noise issue for such a late time. For us residents who live
here, we must work, so it's inconvenient to have so many visitors at those late hours be outside our homes. We can hear the
noises that many of the visitors make. And of course not all visitors to Andys place respect our neighborhood and leave trash
behind. 
 
We would welcome that Andys place have visitors businesses hours to be a better situation for this neighborhood. Already,
North Star apartments, which Compass Health owns has business hours for their residents. We would like to see something
similar.
 
Security at Compass Health could improve. During the day, we see 2‐3 security guards in place. At night, only 1 security guard is
in place and sometimes not visible. On the weekends people will come onto the Compass Health campus and go around the
parking lot and side of NorthStar apartments and stay there through the day. Security does not seem to push them along to go.
So, they stay and create issues for the residents. 
 
I know that these issues might seem small. However, I can give you a front‐line report from the front lines of this
neighborhood. This neighborhood is quickly changing from a renter to a homeowners neighborhood. One by one another
home that was a rental becomes a homeowner home. As time goes on, this neighborhood will once again gentrify and become
homeowners. And with that as you're aware, we homeowners have a vested interest in living in the city. We expect safety and
security to be a part of living here. And we will bring up these issues to the city council and mayors office. We want our elected
officials to know that we care for our families, neighborhood, etc. 
 
Going forward,  we will continue to hold Compass Health accountable for the security of their campus. Also, going forward, we
will continue to ask the city of Everett to keep this buffer zone in place. 
 
Safety,  Security, and Accountability,
 
Thank you,
 
 



 
Jose Villalaz 
3314 Lombard avenue 
Everett, Washington  98201 
425‐344‐7363 
 
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2FAAb9ysg&data=05%7C02%7CAEly%40everettwa.gov%7Ced29395f609940cd916e08dcac31e2c0%7C7ac422a9fc2d41b89bff064aaf2eb0c4%7C1%7C0%7C638574577787540168%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yWuUhY3hZTAmN%2FQqO0oXd%2BiVCbefHt0O10yNK5yLMvI%3D&reserved=0


[EXTERNAL] Buffer Zone updates (Compass Health)->1000003740.jpg



[EXTERNAL] Buffer Zone updates (Compass Health)->1000003740.jpg->1000003429.jpg



[EXTERNAL] Buffer Zone updates (Compass Health)->1000002495.jpg



[EXTERNAL] Buffer Zone updates (Compass Health)->1000003707.jpg



[EXTERNAL] Buffer Zone updates (Compass Health)->1000002497.jpg



From:                                         Katie Vaal <ktvlsp3@gmail.com>
Sent:                                           Wednesday, July 24, 2024 3:44 PM
To:                                               DL‐Council
Subject:                                     [EXTERNAL] Public comment
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

 
Good afternoon City Council, 
 
I'm writing in to give comment about the buffer zones which will be discussed at tonight's safe community council meeting. 
 
I live in the buffer zone that's been implemented around Compass Health and their low barrier facility, Andy's Place. I'm sure
you've heard about many of the problems from my neighbors without me needing to go into detail. I'll add that Andy's Place is
only one piece of the puzzle in the issues we're seeing. 
 
We have seen an improvement in police presence and call response times since the buffer zone went into effect. Everett PD
has been very open to hearing about, and working, problem properties in the neighborhood. We've been utilizing the Everett
at Work app and having great response from parking and code enforcement. The buffer zone is not a fix all, we knew it
wouldn't be, but I'm very grateful for the additional support. 
 
I don't know how city is currently monitoring the success, or lack of, in the buffer zones. I just want to communicate my support
for this tool. If more low barrier facilities are opened in the future, I'd love to see buffer zones go into place automatically. Id
like to see increased sentences for drug dealing around services. Perhaps, that would create less pushback from the
neighborhoods unwilling to take on services. We need this tool to help protect vulnerable tenants, and their neighbors, from
drug dealers looking to take advantage. 
 
Thank you, 
Katie Incognito 
 


	7.24.24 Packet
	Always Active Services-Interurban Trail-YMCA Ped Imp-Final Acceptance-KA-CS
	Always Active Services-Interurban Trail-YMCA Ped Imp-Final Acceptance-KA-SD
	Beverly Lake Sewer-Call for Bids-SN-CS
	Beverly Lake Sewer-Call for Bids-SN-SD
	McClure & Sons-WPCF TFI Bar Screen Update-Final Accept-JN-CS (2)
	McClure & Sons-WPCF TFI Bar Screen Update-Final Accept-JN-SD
	WDFW-Law Enforcement Srvs-Amend No. 1-AT-CS
	WDFW-Law Enforcement Srvs-Amend No.1-AT-SD
	WMVD-Alverson & 41st-Grand Ped Imp-Call for Bids-TH-CS
	WMVD-Alverson & 41st-Grand Ped Imp-Call for Bids-TH-SD
	2024 Russula Timber Sale Resolution-AT-CS
	2024 Russula Timber Sale Resolution-AT-SD
	Councilmember introducing resolution

	PFM Financial Advisors LLC Amendment 2_CS
	PFM Financial Advisors LLC Amendment 2_SD
	CB 2407-14 Water Main Replace Y Phase 2-Plans & Systems-SN-CS
	CB 2407-14 Water Main Replace Y Phase 2-Plans & Systems-SN-SD
	Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it would have passed all portions of this ordin...

	CB 2406-13 Rockefeller Apts Alley Vacation_ORD_CS
	CB 2406-13 Rockefeller Apts Alley Vacation_ORD_SD1
	Section 4.
	The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it would have passed all portions of this ordinance indepen...

	CB 2406-13 Rockefeller Apts Alley Vacation_ORD_SD2

	7.24.24 Written Comments_Combined



